
Request for Proposals: Administrative Services for Prescription 
Drug Benefits 

RFP # OHB08-7 
Issued: September 15, 2008 

 
ADDENDUM 1 

Issued: October 4, 2008 
 

This Addendum incorporates certain general comments, 
general corrections to the RFP, and answers to questions posed 
before, during and after the mandatory pre-proposal conference 
held on September 29, 2008. 
 
GENERAL 
 

Verbal responses to questions at the Pre-Proposal 
Conference on September 29, 2008 are unofficial and are not 
binding. Only these written responses may be relied upon by 
offerors. 
 

Participants at the Pre-proposal Conference were required 
to register their attendance and to provide their business cards 
and fax numbers. A list of all attendees at the conference is 
enclosed for informational purposes. 

 
The submission date has been moved to 2:00pm local 

prevailing time on November 3, 2008.  This additional time will 
allow the Commonwealth to identify finalists in the PPEA 
procurement OHB08-2. 

 
As discussed in this pre-proposal meeting, DHRM will send 

attendees a word version of the RFP, as well as the RFP 
checklist and a copy of the “one” employee health benefits card. 
 
General Changes to Released RFP: 
 
1. Please provide the RFP documents in word format.  We are not able to respond in 

the necessary format (redline) with only the pdf files.    
 

The RFP will be provided in word format 
 



2. Please identify any plan design changes that were made at any time between 
07/01/06 and 06/30/08.  Please provide the effective date of the change, what the 
change was and on which plan(s) the change were made on.   

 
No substantive plan changes have been made to COVA Care during this period 
 

3. RFP Section 1.6 – Please provide the attachments listed in this section as they were 
not included on the CD.     

 
Attachments 3 and 4 were listed in error.  Please ignore references to these 
attachments. 

 
4. Please confirm the due date for the Pharmacy RFP is October 16, 2008 @ 2 PM.  

Page 1 of the RFP references October 20 as the due date.   
 

The Due date has been changed to November 3, 2008 to allow the Commonwealth 
time to develop a short list of final candidate for the PPEA project OHB08-2.  

  
5. Please provide detailed pharmacy claim data  in the following format: 

Fill Date, NDC Number, Metric Quantity, and Days Supply for each prescription filled 
for at least the most recent 6 months of claim history available – preferably in an 
Access database.   
 
No additional data will be provided.  Please work with the data you have received 
 

6. Does the current PBM administer disease management programs?  If so, which 
diseases are currently covered by the PBM? If not, does COVA wish their PBM to 
provide such services in the future?   

   
We are looking for the offerer to provide their solutions for disease management  and 
how their solutions integrate with other program components 

 
7. What do you feel is the PBM's role in disease management/wellness/health 

management programs?   
 

We are looking for the offerer to provide their solutions for disease management  and 
how their solutions integrate with other program components 

 
8. Does the current PBM provide a gaps-in-care program to COVA members? If so, 

please describe the process.  If not, does COVA wish their PBM to provide such a 
service in the future?  

 
 We are looking for the offerer to provide their solutions for these programs 

 
9. What do you feel is your PBM's role in gaps-in-care?   
 
 We are looking for the offerer to provide their solutions for these programs 
 
10. Can you please provide the current formulary that is in place with your current PBM.  

Do you wish your future PBM to match this formulary or is COVA open to alternate 
formularies?   



 
 The Commonwealth program does not have a formulary 
 
11. Can you please provide the current retail network that is in place with your PBM?   
 
 We use the network of our current PBM 
 
12. Who is your current Specialty drug provider?  We use our current PBM for specialty 

durg services.  What are your expectations regarding medical-pharmacy integration 
with specialty medications in high risk patients?   

 
 We are looking for the offerer to provide their solutions for these programs 
 
13. Can you please clarify and expand on your expectations of a "dedicated customer 

service team" and clinical pharmacist role on that team.   
 
 We are looking for the offerer to provide their solutions to these services 
 
14. As long as the Contractor meets the geo access requirements, is there opposition to 

a custom Rx network?  Will you allow a customized (Virginia situs) retail network as 
an alternative option?  

 
 We are looking for the offerer to provide their solutions to these services 
 
15. The financial sections lists two pricing options - full pass through and spread pricing 

sections - are you requesting both financial bid formats to be submitted?    
 
 Yes  
 
16. Does COVA currently have a 90 day at retail option available to its members or is it 

something they are considering for the next contract?   
 
 We are looking for the offerer to provide their solutions to these services 
 
17. Performance Guarantees: 

a. Guarantee - The department will maintain current eligibility files for both the state 
employee group and the TLC program.  Enrollee eligibility changes may be made 
electronically without restriction to time of day or day of week.  The department 
will move these changes automatically to an electronic file for pickup by the 
contractors.  It is expected that each contractor pick up changes on a regularly 
working basis, and in all cases, at least once daily. 
• Will COVA send daily Add/Change files or daily Full files?  What is the 

processing standard that COVA would like to see met (ex:  99% files loaded 
in 2 days)? 

 
Daily change file and monthly audit (full) file.  Daily change files are to be 
processed within 48 hours 
 

b. RFP Document - 2.5.9 Payments/Denials must be mailed or generated within 5 
business days of the date of claim processing.   



• Bulk mails to providers can have a hold of up to 14 calendar days.  Does this 
request apply to the member and provider or just the member?   

 
Member and provider 
 

c. RFP Document - Performance Guarantee Quality - Compliance with this 
standard shall be determined by internal audit, verified by external audit. Should 
the internal and external audits arrive at results which materially affect the 
amount of liquidated damages, the Contractor and the Department shall 
negotiate the actual amount of the damages. If these parties cannot reach an 
agreement through negotiation, they shall jointly pay for an independent audit 
whose determination shall be binding on both parties.  
• Will the performance guarantee results be determined by an external audit? 
 
All performance standard results are subject to verification by external audit, 
however, it is expected that the vendor will self-report based on their internal 
audit. 

 
18. The technical questionnaire does not seem to contain the required data to complete 

several of the analyses.  In particular, the Retail Pharmacy Analysis, Formulary 
Analysis, MAC Pricing, and Retail/Mail Prices tabs do not have any data to analyze. 
When we will we receive this information?  

 
 We will provide the pricing data for the finalists. 
 
19. In Section 6.0 of the RFP, there are specific instructions regarding how "proprietary" 

sections of our proposal should be marked.  How are we to mark the proprietary 
sections in the technical questionnaire since it is in an Excel format?  

 
Identify the sections you want protected in a separate document on a separate page 
at the beginning of your proposal.  

 
20. Can we include an Executive Summary in our response?  If so, where should it be 

placed?  
 

Yes, brevity and clarity are encouraged.  The location should follow the cover letter. 
 
21. In the technical proposal there is a tab for Performance Standards.  It requests that 

the 2008 results be reported.  Since we have not closed out 2008, what specific time 
period should we report on?  Also, are we to provide our Book of Business numbers 
in response to these questions?  

 
First half of 2008. Reslts of the functions and personnel that will be specifically 
dedicated to the Commonwealt is preferred over book of business. If not possible, 
book of business will be accepted.  

 
22. Where are the spreadsheets associated with Schedule 2-1 (Rate Build Up, 

Administrative Expense Build Up, and the Proposal Cost Summary) to be placed in 
our proposal?  

 



See Section 6 of the Medical-Surgical RFP for placement instructions. This item is 
discussed in paragraph 6.5.  

 
23. In Section 6.5 of the RFP, we are asked to include a copy of our audited financial 

report for the most recently completed fiscal year.  However, question #10 of the 
technical proposal requests a copy of the most recent "three" years of audited 
financials.  Please clarify which statement is correct.  

 
 The three most recent years of audited financial statements. 
 
24. The Officer Certification form included in the technical questionnaire states at the top 

of the page "Request for PBM Proposal (RFP) for Qiagen".  Should we change this 
to say "Request for PBM Proposal (RFP) for COVA"?  

 
 Delete Qiagen and replace with COVA. This portion is not protected.  
 
25. The CD that we received indicated that claims data by service category was 

imbedded in the cost projection worksheet, however, we were unable to locate this 
data.  Please confirm the location of the claims data or let us know how we can 
obtain this information. 

 
 See section 5 of Schedule 2-1 #1-8.  
 
26. 5.2.1 references an original, a redacted and 6 copies ---- do we provide 6 copies of 

the original or 6 copies of the redacted proposal?  
 

Please provide an original and six copies of that original.  Additionally, please 
provide one “redacted” copy of your submission. 

 
27. Is Page 2 of the RFP intended to serve as the Executed RFP Statement?  
 
 Yes 
 
28. Is detailed utilization/claims data included on the CD containing files referenced in 

1.8?  
 
 Yes 
 
29. 2.4.8 Generate and mail a check or electronic payment, as required, and an 

explanation of benefits (EOB) or denial notice for subscriber submitted claims and a 
remittance advice for provider submitted claims. The form of the EOB, denial notice 
and remittance advice are subject to the Department's approval. 

 
Question:  How many subscriber submitted claims were submitted for payment in 2007?  
For YTD in 2008?  
 
 Please use the information provided to prepare your response.  
 
30. 2.4.14 Provide, on a schedule to be determined, an electronic claim file to a 

designate data warehouse, or to other vendors as needed to perform integrated 
disease management services.   



 
How many vendors for CoVA and TLC currently receive electronic claims from its 
current PBM?  

 
 Two   
 
 Are any of these entities Disease Management Companies?  
 
 Yes 
 
32. 2.4.15 Who is the third party vendor requiring real-time access to claim information 

for purposes of performing consolidated customer service, health coaching and 
patient care coordination? (handle as part of the PPEA update)  

 
 2.6.3. Provide a legal defense against all claims arising out of this contract. 
 

Question:  Can CoVA and TLC extrapolate on this requirement and/or reasons for 
this requirement?  
 
Please  strike the current wording in 2.6.3  and replace with the following “Provide a 
legal defense against any claims arising out of this conract except as otherwise 
provided by law.” 

 
33. 2.8.5 Before issuing a contract, the plan must submit a paid claims test file 

containing at least 500 claims in a format that will be provided. The Department must 
be able to read and approve the file format. PLEASE NOTE: Standard vendor files 
are not acceptable to fulfill this requirement. 

 
Question:  Can you please clarify notation that excludes standard vendor files.  
 
The data must be submitted in the required format. 

 
34. 2.8.7 The plan shall work with the Department and other vendors in the creation and 

distribution of a single, COVA-specific ID card.  
 
 Question:  Is PBM responsible for the ID card production? No 
 
35. 4.1.7:  IBNR typically relates to medical plans.  Under the pharmacy plan, we will 

report all claims submitted to the organization via POS or direct member 
reimbursement as applies to non-network claims.  Could you please provide further 
clarification regarding this item?  

 
 A lag triangle must be provided. 
 
36. 8.4.2:  We bill semi-monthly vs. weekly, will this be an option?   
 
 This would be a negotiating point with finalists. 
 



37. Can you confirm that we only need to complete section 5 of the 
“COVA_Cost_OHB08-7.xls” file?   

   
 Confirmed  

38. In the technical questionnaire tabs “MAC”, “Retail & Mail Prices” and “Formulary 
Analysis”, will you be providing the drug names, or should we use our top 50?     

 We will provide them in a CD issued to finalists.  

39. In the technical questionnaire, the tab “Retail Pharmacy Analysis” requests a 
pharmacy network disruption.  Will you be supplying the pharmacies that the 
Commonwealth of Virginia currently uses in order for us to complete the form?      

 Finalists will be asked to complete this worksheet.  
 

40. We have requested the data CD.  Will we receive that prior to the conference? 
 
 If you have not yet received it, a CD will be available at the conference  
 
41. We have thoroughly reviewed Section 3.0 "Pharmacy Drug Standards of 

Performance."  Upon review we find that there are additional guarantees that we 
would be willing to offer that are not contained in this section.  Some of the standards 
lack performance targets and specific methodology.  We will attempt to meet the 
requirements outlined in Section 3.0; however, we would like to submit our own 
Performance Guarantee document to offer additional guarantees and provide 
clarification of guarantee methodology.  Is this acceptable?  
 
Our expectation is that requirements outlined in Section 3.0 will be met, however, we 
welcome additional guarantees and standards from the offerer. 

 
42. Is there an incumbent?   
 

These services are currently provided by a vendor.  You may find a complete listing 
of current contracts at the following link: 
http://www.dhrm.virginia.gov/customers/vendors.html  

 
43. What type of pricing model are you looking for, traditional (rebates are guaranteed 

and no admin fees) or pass thru/transparent (all rebates are passed thru, and we 
charge a per claim fee)? 

 
 We are interested in your proposals. 
 
44. Section 2.4 regarding Mail Order Prescriptions, do you have a preference for this 

company to be based in Virginia? 
   

Contractors that are registered with the Department of Minority Business Enterprises 
(DMBE) as certified SWaM may receive scoring preference under the category of 
SWaM utilization.  This certification is available to companies that meet the criteria, 
Virginia base, or ownership is not one of the criteria.  
 

http://www.dhrm.virginia.gov/customers/vendors.html


 
45. Section 2.8.2 regarding the Member Satisfaction Survey, is that a pharmacy specific 

survey you want? 
 

It is comprehensive across the program 
 

 
46. Section 6.5 regarding Cost Proposal, are you looking for per employee or per 

member and does that include claims? 
 

PMPM, does not include claims  
 
47. If there is a typo or misleading information in the questionnaire and related 

worksheets, should we correct it?  
 
A. Regarding changes to the questionnaire and related worksheets, please do not 
attempt to change the text. The document should not permit this. If there is is an 
error (e.g., Lynchburg twice, no Charlottesville on one of the provider access 
worksheets), use the "Explanation" worksheet to describe what should be changed 
(e,g. "Row 11, column C of {worksheet label} should read Charlottesville, not 
Lynchburg.)  

 
48. Express Scripts has been given access to the “Ariba Supplier Network;” however, the 

RFP refers to the “Ariba Commerce Services Network Vendor Registration Systems.” 
Are these systems the same? 

 
Yes 
 

49. Requirement 2.4.2 states, “Receive, date, and control claims within 24 hours of the 
day received.” Please clarify and/or elaborate on this requirement. 

 
The Commonwealth is interested in your approach to tracking claims 

 
50. Is it COVA’s intent that the successful vendor will be subject to both the premium 

projection and the discount guarantees?  If the premium projection is met, but a 
discount guarantee is not, is a penalty due to COVA?  YES Conversely, if all pricing 
guarantees are met, but premium projection is not met due to changes in 
demographics or PMPM volume, is the intent that the 1% penalty scale will still 
apply? 

 
Yes, However, very stable population with little variation in demographics or PMPM 
volume 

 
51. In the COVA_Cost_OHB08-7 worksheet, eligible charges are defined to be gross 

AWP.  Is this gross AWP as of a specific date, or is it gross AWP as of date filled?  
Does AWP assume actual package size filled?  Additionally, what is the source of 
AWP (e.g., Medispan, FDB)? 

 
Use industry standards for your proposal 



52. Is COVA requesting a lag triangle for the self funded prescription drug benefit?  It is 
our experience that there is a very low incidence of incurred but not reported volume 
in the self-funded prescription drug benefit. 

 
Yes 

 
53. In section 7.10, payment terms are specified as net 30.  Should we assume the 

payment terms outlined in Appendix 7, part B. (weekly net 2) will apply to claims 
payment terms? 

 
That section is boiler plate, terms may vary with negotiations 

 
54. In sections 8.2.3 and 8.2.4, COVA references indexing the contract price to CPI-W.  

In a self-funded arrangement, what should we assume to be the ‘contract price’? 
 

Administrative costs 
 
55. In order to appropriately develop our offering, can COVA elaborate on instances 

when it is expected check float may accrue to the Department (outlined in section 
2.4.10 and 8.4.6)? 

 
The instances cited in these sections are representative 

 
56. Section 5.1.1 states that price is a factor when selecting finalists.  Are they willing to 

reveal the weighting price will receive in the proposal evaluation? 
 

See section 6.7 of the RFP for overall evaluation criteria 
 
57. Section 6.5 requests a firm fixed contract price.  Is this intended to apply to the self- 

funded prescription drug benefit? 
 

Yes, on administrative costs 
 
58. We understand that COVA does not use a formulary, so in what way does your PBM 

work with you to determine which drugs are on your first tier? 
 

We are interested in your proposals/solutions 
 
59. What clinical programs does COVA currently have in place? 
 

We are interested in your proposals/solutions 
 
60. What type of P&T support does your PBM currently provide?  What would you like 

to be different? 
 

We are interested in your proposals/solutions 
 



61. The Technical Questionnaire states, “You will provide an ‘Rx Performance 
Guarantee’ Excel worksheet, which includes your specific offer for the client. 
Confirm this has been completed.”  Will an excel template be provided to vendors for 
completion or will vendors create their own document. 

 
This will be provided at appropriate time 
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